

# **AllTrades Liability Policy Wording**

Version: V25062021

Updated: Jul-21



# **ABOUT ALL TRADES**

All Trades Cover are the specialists in trade insurance and we bring a unique understanding of the risks associated with the trade industry. Our brokers have extensive experience in providing insurance for tradespeople and we have a strong focus on providing exceptional customer service. With our selection of insurance packages, we can find the best cover for your needs.

# **ABOUT HIGH STREET UNDERWRITING AGENCY**

High Street Underwriting Agency Pty Limited A.C.N 096 939 169 AFS Licence 244370 (High Street) is a member of the Underwriting Agencies Council (UAC). High Street is an authorised Coverholder of Certain Underwriters at Lloyds and is licenced to wholesale insurance in **Australia**.

In effecting this Contract of Insurance, any cover is accepted by High Street acting under an authority given by the subscribing Underwriters and High Street is acting as Agent of the Insurers and not the Agent of **You**, the Insured.

# **ABOUT CERTAIN UNDERWRITERS AT LLOYD'S**

Lloyd's is the world's specialist insurance and reinsurance market, bringing together an outstanding concentration of underwriting expertise and talent. Over 80 syndicates underwrite insurance at Lloyd's, covering all classes of **Business**. Together they interact with thousands of brokers daily to create insurance solutions for businesses in over 200 countries and territories around the world.

In **Australia** Lloyd's has been insuring risks for over 150 years and is authorised under the *Insurance Act 1973 (Cth)* to conduct insurance **Business** in **Australia**. That Act establishes a system of financial supervision of general insurers in **Australia**.



#### Underwritten by

#### Certain Underwriters at Lloyd's 100%

If **We** issue **You** with a **Policy**, **You** will be given a **Policy** Schedule. The **Policy** Schedule sets out the specific terms applicable to **Your** cover and should be read together with the **Policy** Wordings. The **Policy** Wordings and **Policy** Schedule form **Your** legal contract, so please keep them in a safe place for future reference. **You** should check the **Policy Schedule** or Renewal **Schedule** if **You** are issued one, when **You** receive it to ensure it accurately states what has been insured. The information collected from **You**, (whether it be from online or in hard copy), including proposal forms, supplementary documentation and declarations made by the insured are the basis and form part of these contracts of insurance.

In effecting this Contract of Insurance, any cover is accepted by High Street acting under an authority given by the subscribing Underwriters and High Street is acting as Agent of the Insurers and not the Agent of **You**, the Insured.

This is to certify that in accordance with the authorisation granted under the Contract by Certain Underwriters at Lloyd's, whose definitive numbers and proportions underwritten by them forms part of the **Schedule** of **Insurance** contained herein, and in consideration of the payment of the premium specified herein, the said Underwriters are hereby bound, severally and not jointly, their Executors and Administrators, to insure in accordance with the terms and conditions contained herein or endorsed hereon.

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED IN RESPECT OF 100% OF THE HEREIN STATED VALUES AND AMOUNTS

**You** are advised to read this **Policy** carefully, particularly the exclusions, conditions and limitations.

# **CONTENTS**

Disclosures and Misrepresentations	5
General Insuring Clause	5
Definitions	5
Public and Products Liability	7
Extensions	7
Additional Clauses	ε
Exclusions	9
GENERAL CONDITIONS	14
Further Information	
Endorsements	16
General Insurance Code of Practice	16
Complaints and Disputes	16



# **DISCLOSURES AND MISREPRESENTATIONS**

# YOUR DUTY OF DISCLOSURE

Before **you** enter into an insurance contract, **you** have a duty to tell **us** anything that **you** know, or could reasonably be expected to know, may affect our decision to insure you and on what terms.

You have this duty until we agree to insure you.

You have the same duty before you renew, extend, vary or reinstate an insurance contract.

You do not need to tell us anything that:

- reduces the risk we insure you for; or
- is common knowledge; or
- we know or should know as an insurer; or
- we waive your duty to tell us about.

# IF YOU DO NOT TELL US SOMETHING

If you do not tell us anything you are required to, we may cancel your contract or reduce the amount we will pay you if you make a claim, or both.

If your failure to tell us is fraudulent, we may refuse to pay a claim and treat the contract as if it never existed.

# **GENERAL INSURING CLAUSE**

In consideration of the payment of the premium to the Underwriters they will provide the insurance stated in each operative section of this Certificate during the Period of Insurance.

This Certificate, the Proposal, the Schedule, including any Schedule issued in addition or substitution and any Endorsements or Memoranda shall be considered one document and any word or expression to which a specific meaning has been attached shall bear such meaning wherever it appears.

The words Certificate and Policy are agreed to share the same meaning wherever they appear in this document.

# **DEFINITIONS**

#### 1. Additional Insured

Additional Insured shall mean

- A. the personal representatives of the Insured in respect of legal liability incurred by the Insured;
- B. any principal for whom the Insured is carrying out a contract for the performance of work but only to the extent required by the contract conditions:
- C. any Person Employed;
- D. any director or partner of the Insured;
- E. the owners of plant hired in by the Insured but only to the extent required by the hiring conditions;
- F. any director or partner of the Insured or Employee in respect of private work undertaken by any Person Employed for such director, partner or Employee with the prior consent of the Insured against legal liability in respect of which the Insured would have been entitled to indemnity under this Certificate if the claim for which indemnity is sought had been made against the Insured;
- G. the officers, committees and members of the Insured's canteen, social, sports and welfare organisations and first aid, medical, fire and security services in their respective capacities as such each of whom shall as though the Insured be subject to the terms of this Certificate so far as they can apply.

### 2. Business

Business shall mean that which is described in the Schedule and conducted solely from premises within the Commonwealth of Australia. The Business shall include

- A. ownership, maintenance and repair of property occupied by or leased to the Insured;
- B. the provision and management of canteen, social, sports and welfare organisations and first aid, ambulance and medical services for the benefit of any Person Employed;
- C. fire and security services maintained solely for the protection of premises owned or occupied by the Insured;
- D. private work undertaken by any Person Employed for any director or partner of the Insured or Employee with the prior consent of the Insured;
- E. participation in exhibitions held within the Territorial Limits;
- F. project supervisor where the Insured act in that capacity in the course of the Business described in the Schedule by virtue of the requirements of any Health and Safety legislation.

# Contract Works

Contract Works shall mean all works executed or in the course of execution by or on behalf of the Insured in the performance of any contract entered into by the Insured and materials for incorporation therein and all plant, tools, equipment, temporary works or temporary building for use in connection therewith.

#### 4. Damage

Damage shall mean physical damage.

#### 5. Injury

Injury shall mean bodily injury, death, disease, illness, nervous shock, mental injury or mental anguish.



#### 6. Nuisance

Nuisance shall mean trespass, interference with any

- 1. easement;
- 2. right of air;
- 3. right of light;
- 4. right of water;
- 5. right of way.

#### 7 Event

Event shall mean any one occurrence or all occurrences of a series consequent on or attributable to one source or original cause.

#### Excess

Excess shall mean the amount's, specified in the Schedule which the Insured shall pay in respect of all damages, compensation, claimant's costs, Legal Costs, expenses before the Underwriters shall be liable to make any payment.

#### 9. Legal Costs

Legal Costs shall mean

- A. costs of legal representation at;
  - 1. any Coroners' Inquest or Fatal Accident inquiry;
  - 2. proceedings in any court arising out of any alleged breach of statutory duty;
- B. all other costs and expenses in relation to the defence, investigation or settlement of any claim.

#### 10. Offshore

Any Person Employed shall be deemed by the Underwriters for the purposes of this Certificate to be Offshore from the time of embarkation onto a conveyance at the point of final departure to any offshore installation including but not limited to any offshore rig or platform until disembarkation onto land upon return from such installation.

#### 11. Person Employed

Person Employed shall mean any

- A. person under a contract of service or apprenticeship with the Insured;
- B. labour master or labour-only sub-contractor or person supplied by any of them;
- C. self-employed person;
- D. person hired to or borrowed by the Insured;
- E. person undertaking study or work experience or similar;
- F. person supplied to the Insured under a contract or agreement, the terms of which deem such person to be in the employment of the Insured; while working under the control of the Insured in connection with the business.

#### 12. Bona-Fide Sub-Contractor

Any Sub-Contractor who supplies all materials for their part of the Contract Works in addition to labour and hand tools.

# 13. **Pollution Contamination**

Pollution Contamination shall mean pollution of buildings or other structures or of water or land or the atmosphere and all loss or Damage or Injury directly or indirectly caused by such Pollution Contamination.

# 14. Products

Products shall mean any commodity, article or thing including packaging, containers and labels sold, supplied, distributed, erected, repaired, altered, treated, installed, processed, manufactured or tested by or on behalf of the Insured and no longer in the possession or under the control of the Insured but shall not include;

- A. food or drink for consumption on the premises of the Insured or at any other premises where the Insured is conducting the Business;
- B. the Contract Works.

#### 15. Property

Property shall mean material property.

# 16. Property Damage

Property Damage shall mean

- a. physical damage to or destruction or loss of tangible property which occurs during the Period of Insurance and any loss of use of that property resulting therefrom;
- b. loss of use of tangible property which has not been physically damaged or destroyed or lost which is caused by physical damage to or destruction or loss of other tangible property which occurs during the Period of Insurance

#### 17. Proposal

Proposal shall mean any information supplied by the Insured in connection with this insurance and any declaration made in connection therewith.



#### 18. Territorial Limits

Territorial Limits shall mean

- a. Commonwealth of Australia;
- b. the non-manual activities of any director and/or partner of the Insured and/or Person Employed ordinarily resident in the territories named in (a) above but temporarily engaged in the Business elsewhere in the world excluding any country or territory which operates under the law of the United States of America or Canada;
- c. elsewhere in the world excluding any country or territory which operates under the law of the United States of America or Canada in connection with any event arising out of Products.

#### 19. Terrorism

Any act, including but not limited to the use of force or violence and/or the threat thereof, by any person or group(s) of persons, whether acting alone or on behalf of or in connection with any organisation(s) or governments committed for political, religious, ideological or similar purposes including the intention to influence any government and/or to put the public, or any section of the public in fear.

# PUBLIC AND PRODUCTS LIABILITY

#### **Cover and Jurisdiction**

The Underwriters will indemnify the Insured and any Additional Insured

- 1. against legal liability for damages and claimants' costs and expenses in respect of:
  - A. Injury sustained by any person;
  - B. Damage to property;
  - C. Nuisance;
  - D. Loss of use of physical property not lost, destroyed or damaged arising out of an occurrence but subject to a sub-limit of AU\$1,000,000 to apply: Happening during the Period of Insurance within the Territorial Limits in connection with the Business
- 2. In respect of Legal Costs incurred with the written consent of the Underwriters in connection with any Event which is or may be the subject of indemnity under 1 above.

Provided always that no indemnity will be afforded by the Underwriters in respect of any judgement, award or settlement made in any country or territory which operates under the laws of the United States of America or Canada or to any order made anywhere in the world to enforce such judgement, award or settlement either in whole or in part unless the Insured has requested that there shall be no such limitation and has accepted the terms offered by the Underwriters in granting such cover which offer and acceptance must be signified by an Endorsement attaching to this Certificate.

### **Limit of Liability and Legal Costs**

- 1. Irrespective of
  - A. the number of parties, entities entitled to indemnity;
  - B. the number of claimants

the total amount payable by the Underwriters and all Extensions in respect of any one Event shall not exceed the Limit of Liability specified in the Schedule for Public Liability.

- Legal Costs payable by the Underwriters shall be paid in addition to the Limit of Liability unless otherwise stated Provided always that
  - A. if a payment of damages and/or claimants' costs and expenses exceeding the Limit of Liability has to be made to dispose of any claim and
  - B. the Underwriters are liable to pay Legal Costs in addition to the Limit of Liability

the liability of the Underwriters for such Legal Costs shall be limited to such proportion as the Limit of Liability bears to the amount paid to dispose of such claim. Nothing contained in this clause shall be construed to vary or override Condition 6 of this Certificate.

# **EXTENSIONS**

# A Legal Expenses Arising From Health and Safety Legislation

- 1. In the event of any act or omission or alleged act or omission leading to criminal proceedings brought in respect of a breach of the relevant Health and Safety Legislation as applicable to each State, Territory or Commonwealth of Australia; or
- 2. In the event of an incident which results in an Inquiry ordered under the relevant Health and Safety Legislation as applicable to each State, Territory or Commonwealth of Australia.

which arises in connection with the Business and which occurs during the Period of Insurance and within the Commonwealth of Australia.

# Indemnity

the Underwriters will provide indemnity up to the limit of liability against legal fees and expenses incurred in representing the Insured in such proceedings including appeals against the results of such proceedings.

This indemnity will not apply

- 1. in respect of fines or penalties of any kind;
- 2. to proceedings relating to the health and safety of any Person Employed;
- 3. to proceedings consequent upon a deliberate act or omission by the Insured;
- ${\bf 4.} \ \ {\bf to} \ {\bf persons} \ {\bf other} \ {\bf than} \ {\bf the} \ {\bf Insured} \ {\bf or} \ {\bf any} \ {\bf director} \ {\bf or} \ {\bf employee} \ {\bf of} \ {\bf the} \ {\bf Insured};$
- 5. where there is an indemnity provided by a legal expenses insurance policy.



#### B Compensation for Court Attendance

If at the request of the Underwriters any Person Employed or director or partner of the Insured shall attend court as a witness in connection with a claim in respect of which the Insured is entitled to indemnity under this section the Underwriters will provide compensation to the Insured at the following rates per day for each day on which attendance is required.

- A. Any director or partner of the Insured AUD 500
- B. Any other Person Employed AUD 250

The following Extensions shall apply, subject always to the limits, terms, conditions and exclusions of the Policy.

#### - Health and Safety at Work Legal Defence Costs

Subject to the terms of the Insurers' written consent and the Underwriters control, the Underwriters will indemnify the Insured and if the Insured so requests, any Person Employed or director or partner of the Insured, in respect of Legal Costs incurred in the defence of any criminal proceedings brought or in an appeal against conviction arising from such proceedings in respect of a breach of any Health and Safety Legislation, provided that an offence is alleged to have been committed during the Period of Insurance in the course of the Business.

This Extension will not apply:

- A. to fines or penalties of any kind;
- B. to proceedings consequent upon any deliberate act or omission by:
  - i. the Insured:
  - ii. any partner or director of the Insured:

which could reasonably have been expected to constitute a breach of the Health and Safety Legislation having regard to the nature and circumstances of such act or omission;

### - Corporate Manslaughter Legal Defence Costs

This Policy is extended to indemnify the Insured and if the Insured so requests any Person Employed or director or partner of the Insured in respect of Legal Costs incurred in the defence of any criminal proceedings brought or in an appeal against conviction arising from such proceedings in respect of manslaughter or culpable homicide or alleged manslaughter or culpable homicide, provided that an offence is alleged to have been committed during the Period of Insurance in the course of the Business.

The Underwriters shall be entitled but not obliged to assume the conduct of the defence of any criminal proceedings in respect of which an indemnity is provided under this Extension.

The indemnity provided under this Extension shall not exceed AUD 2,500,000 any one claim and in the aggregate for all claims during any one Period of Insurance.

However, the total liability of the Underwriters of this Policy, inclusive of this Extension, shall not exceed the Limits of Liability as stated in the Schedule.

This Extension shall not apply:

- A. to fines or penalties of any kind;
- B. where indemnity is provided by any other insurance.

# **ADDITIONAL CLAUSES**

In respect of the circumstances specified in the following Additional Clauses the Underwriters will provide indemnity up to the Limit of Indemnity subject to the terms of the relevant Additional Clause and subject otherwise to the terms of this policy.

Provided that the circumstances arise in connection with the Business and that the Event giving rise to legal liability occurs during the Period of Insurance and within the Territorial Limits.

# A. Cross Liabilities

Where there is more than one party named as the Insured in the Schedule this policy will apply separately to each such Insured in the same manner and to the same extent as if a separate policy had been issued to each Insured and the Underwriters agree to waive all rights of subrogation against any of these parties.

Provided that the total amount payable in respect of compensation does not exceed the limit of indemnity.

#### B. Motor Contingent Liability

Where the Insured is legally liable for accidental bodily injury or loss of or damage to property arising out of the use of any motor vehicle in connection with the business the Underwriters will indemnify the Insured against such legal liability. This indemnity will not apply:

- A. in respect of any vehicle owned or provided by the Insured or any Principal for whom the Insured is working or any sub-contractor acting for or on behalf of the Insured;
- B. in respect of loss of or damage to such vehicle or to goods conveyed therein or thereon;
- C. while such vehicle is being driven by the Insured or by any person who to the knowledge of the Insured or of the Insured's representative does not hold a licence to drive such vehicle unless such person has held and is not disqualified from holding or obtaining such licence;
- D. to legal liability in respect of which the Insured is entitled to indemnity under any other insurance;
- E. outside the Commonwealth of Australia.

For the purposes of this Additional Clause the term Insured shall mean only the Insured named in the Schedule and no other party

### C. Tenant's Liability for Hired or Rented Buildings

Where the Insured is legally liable for loss of or damage to building(s) (or fixtures or fittings thereof) hired or rented to the Insured for the purpose of occupancy by the Insured the Underwriters will provide indemnity against such legal liability. This indemnity will not apply to:

- A. the first AUD 100 of such loss or damage caused other than by fire or explosion;
- B. loss or damage caused by fire or any other peril against which a tenancy or other agreement stipulates that insurance shall be effected by or on behalf of the Insured.



#### D. Liability for Buildings Temporarily Occupied

Where buildings (other than buildings comprising the works) are temporarily occupied by the Insured for the purposes of carrying out work in connection with the business the Underwriters will provide indemnity against legal liability in respect of loss of or damage to such buildings or their contents occurring during the Insured's occupancy.

Provided that such buildings are not owned, leased, hired or rented by the Insured or any subcontractor acting for or on behalf of the Insured.

#### E. Overseas Personal Liability

The Underwriters will indemnify the Insured and if the Insured so requests any director or partner of the Insured or Person Employed against legal liability incurred in a personal capacity while temporarily outside the Commonwealth of Australia in connection with the Business but excluding any country and/or territory which operates under the law of the United States of America or Canada. This extension shall not apply to legal liability:

- A. arising out of the ownership or occupation of land or buildings;
- B. in respect of which indemnity is afforded by any other insurance.

# **EXCLUSIONS**

The Underwriters shall not be liable under this policy in respect of:

#### 1. Injury to Persons Employed

Injury to any person employed or to any working partner or proprietor comprising the insured arising out of and in the course of employment by the Insured in the Business.

#### 2. Work at High Risk Premises

Any claim arising out of or in connection with any work undertaken on or in the following:

- a. power stations, nuclear installations or establishments;
- b. refineries, bulk storage or production premises in the oil, gas or chemical industries;
- d. mainframe computers or dedicated computer sites;
- e. aircraft, hovercraft, aerospace systems or watercraft (other than work on watercraft in docks, harbours, boatyards or inland waterways not involving the use of heat);
- f. railways (trackside) or arising out of work on any part of any aerodrome or airport provided for take off or landing of aircraft or the movement of aircraft or parking of aircraft including associated surface roads and ground equipment parking areas.

#### Vehicles and Craft

Liability arising out of the possession, ownership or use by or on behalf of the Insured or any person entitled to indemnity of this policy of any:

- a. mechanically propelled vehicle or trailer attached thereto used in circumstances in respect of which insurance or security is necessary to meet the requirements of road traffic legislation;
- b. aircraft, aerial device, hovercraft or watercraft;

Provided there is no indemnity afforded under any more specific insurance this exclusion will not apply to:

- i. the loading or unloading of motor vehicles or trailers;
- ii. the circumstances described in Additional Clause C;
- iii. watercraft which are less than 8 metres in length;
- iv. barges used solely on inland waterways.

# 4. Contract Works And Property Under The Insured's Control

Loss of or damage to:

- a. Contract Works.
- b. Property belonging to or hired to the Insured.
- c. Property which is held in trust by or held in the custody or control of the Insured or any Person Employed by the Insured or any party who is carrying out work on behalf of the Insured where such property is held for the purposes of:
  - i. sale, supply, transportation or storage; or
  - ii. work being carried out at the Insured's normal place of business or that of the party carrying out the work

by or on behalf of the Insured other than in the circumstances described in Additional Clauses D or E

- d. Property for which there is a contractual requirement to effect insurance (other than Public Liability insurance).
- e. Property for which there is a contractual requirement to effect insurance by reason of Clause 21,2,1 of the 1980 Edition of the Joint Contracts Tribunal Conditions of Contract (or the corresponding clause in any prior version or any subsequent revision or substitution thereof) or by any clause of similar intent under any other conditions of contract.

# 5. Loss Of or Damage To Products Supplied Or Contract Work Executed

- a. loss of or damage to; or
- b. the cost incurred by anyone in repairing, removing, replacing, re-applying, rectifying or reinstating: any Products supplied or Contract Work executed other than Products supplied or Contract Work executed under a separate previously completed contract



#### 6. Recalling Etc. Of Products Supplied Or Contract Work Executed

The cost incurred by anyone in:

- a. Recalling or altering or making refunds in respect of any Products supplied or Contract Work executed;
- b. rectifying defective Contract Work executed;
- c. remedying any defects or alleged defects in land or buildings or structures or other premises disposed of by the Insured

#### 7. Liquidated Damages and Penalty Clauses Etc.

Liquidated damages or penalty clauses or fines or punitive or exemplary damages or any damages resulting from the multiplication of compensatory damages.

#### 8. Professional Services

Advice, instruction, consultancy, design, formula, inspection, certification or testing performed or provided separately for a fee or under a separate contract

#### 9. Aircraft And Nuclear Risks

Liability arising out of products supplied with the knowledge of the Insured or Contract Work executed by or on behalf of the Insured which could affect:

- a. the navigation, propulsion or safety of any aircraft or other aerial device;
- b. the safety or operation of nuclear installations.

#### 10. Contractual Liability

#### A. Any Claim for:

- (1) performance of the **Insured's** obligations under any contract, including an agreement to indemnify any other person or organisation against a loss or liability; or
- (2) damages for the Insured's failure to perform such an obligation
- B. This specifically includes, but is not limited to, contractual obligations arising out of or involving injuries to the **Insured's Employees** or a **Labour Contractor**.
- C. This exclusion will not apply to:
  - (1) statutory warranties;
  - (2) cover for any principal of the Insured for which the Insured is carrying out work pursuant to a contract, but only to the extent that the relevant liability arises directly from the Insured's performance of the contract subject always to the Limit of Liability, and to the other terms, conditions and exclusions of the Policy;
  - (3) any liability which would have imposed on or attached to the **Insured** in the absence of the contractual obligation.

### 11. Pollution Or Contamination

- a. All pollution or contamination of buildings or other structures or of water or land or the atmosphere; and
- b. All personal injury or loss of or damage to property directly or indirectly caused by such pollution or contamination;

other than caused by a sudden identifiable unintended and unexpected incident which occurs in its entirety at a specific time and place during the period of insurance.

All pollution or contamination which arises out of one incident shall be deemed to have occurred on the date that the Insured first becomes aware of such incident.

The liability of the Underwriters for all compensation payable in respect of all incidents which are deemed to have occurred during the period of insurance and arising from pollution or contamination shall not exceed the Limit of Indemnity in any one period of insurance.

# 12. Radioactive Contamination and Explosive Nuclear Assemblies Exclusion Clause

This Policy does not cover

- (a) loss or destruction of or damage to any property whatsoever or any loss or expense whatsoever resulting or arising therefrom or any consequential loss
- (b) any legal liability of whatsoever nature
  - directly or indirectly caused by or contributed to by or arising from
- (i) ionising radiations or contamination by radioactivity from any nuclear fuel or from any nuclear waste from the combustion of nuclear fuel
- (ii) the radioactive, toxic, explosive or other hazardous properties of any explosive nuclear assembly or nuclear component thereof.

# 13. Hazardous Work

Arising from or in connection with

- a. any work of demolition except demolition solely undertaken with hand held tools and of structures not exceeding 5 metres in height by any Person Employed when such work forms an ancillary part of a contract for construction, alteration or repair carried out by the Insured;
- b. the construction, alteration or repair of bridges, towers, steeples, chimney shafts, blast furnaces, viaducts or mines;
- c. pile driving, tunnelling or quarrying;
- d. the use of explosives;
- e. excavations below 5 metres in depth;
- f. any work carried out at a height in excess of 15 metres above ground level or floor level in the case of work inside a building or structure;
- g. the handling, removal, stripping out, demolition, transportation or disposal of asbestos or materials containing asbestos fibre.

# 14. **Defamation**

In respect of any form of defamation.



#### 15. War and Civil War Exclusion Clause NMA.464

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein this Policy does not cover Loss or Damage directly or indirectly occasioned by, happening through or in consequence of war, invasion, acts of foreign enemies, hostilities (whether war be declared or not), civil war, rebellion, revolution, insurrection, military or usurped power or confiscation or nationalisation or requisition or destruction of or damage to property by or under the order of any government or public or local authority.

# 16. Terrorism Exclusion Clause - NMA.2920

Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary within this insurance or any endorsement thereto it is agreed that this insurance excludes loss, damage, cost or expense of whatsoever nature directly or indirectly caused by, resulting from or in connection with any act of terrorism regardless of any other cause or event contributing concurrently or in any other sequence to the loss.

For the purpose of this endorsement an act of terrorism means an act, including but not limited to the use of force or violence and/or the threat thereof, of any person or groups(s) of persons, whether acting alone or on behalf of or in connection with any organisation(s) or government(s), committed for political, religious, ideological or similar purposes including the intention to influence any government and/or to put the public, or any section of the public, in fear.

This endorsement also excludes loss, damage, cost or expense of whatsoever nature directly or indirectly caused by, resulting from or in connection with any action taken in controlling, preventing suppressing or in any way relating to any act of terrorism.

If the Underwriters allege that by reason of this exclusion, any loss, damage, cost or expense is not covered by this insurance the burden of proving the contrary shall be upon the Assured.

In the event any portion of this endorsement is found to be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder shall remain in full force and effect.

#### 17. Excess

For the amount of the excess stated in the Schedule for each Operative Section.

#### 18. Employment Practice Liability

Directly or indirectly occasioned by, happening through or in consequence of any claim for breach of employment, contract, defamation, discrimination and/or harassment and/or in relation to the hiring, supervision, retention and/or personal development of any director and/or partner of the Insured and/or Person Employed however arising.

# 19. Faulty Workmanship

This Policy does not extend to provide indemnity for the cost of performing correcting or improving any work undertaken by you

#### 20. Sanction Limitation and Exclusion Clause LMA3100

The Insurer(s) shall not be deemed to provide cover and no Insurer shall be liable to pay any claim or provide any benefit hereunder to the extent that the provision of such cover payment of such claim or provision of such benefit would expose that Insurer to any sanction prohibition or restriction under United Nations resolutions or the trade or economic sanctions laws or regulations of the European Union Australia United Kingdom or United States of America.

# 21. Personal Injury to Bona-Fide Sub-Contractor

Personal Injury to any Bona-Fide Sub-Contractor engaged by the insured

# 22. Vibration, Removal, Weakening of Supports

This insurance does not apply to liability for damage/injury caused by the Insured's activities resulting from vibration, removal, weakening or interference with the support of land or buildings not owned or occupied by the Insured.

#### 23. Legionnaires Disease Exclusion

This insurance does not apply to liability in respect of Personal Injury or Property Damage arising directly or indirectly out of Legionnaires Disease or from exposure to any material which may cause or contribute to the contraction of Legionnaires Disease.

### 24. Communicable Disease Exclusion

- 1. Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary within this policy, this policy does not cover all actual or alleged loss, liability, damage, compensation, injury, sickness, disease, death, medical payment, defence cost, cost, expense or any other amount, directly or indirectly and regardless of any other cause contributing concurrently or in any sequence, originating from, caused by, arising out of, contributed to by, resulting from, or otherwise in connection with a Communicable Disease or the fear or threat (whether actual or perceived) of a Communicable Disease.
- 2. For the purposes of this endorsement, loss, liability, damage, compensation, injury, sickness, disease, death, medical payment, defence cost, cost, expense or any other amount, includes, but is not limited to, any cost to clean-up, detoxify, remove, monitor or test for a Communicable Disease.
- 3. As used herein, a Communicable Disease means any disease which can be transmitted by means of any substance or agent from any organism to another organism where:
  - 3.1. the substance or agent includes, but is not limited to, a virus, bacterium, parasite or other organism or any variation thereof, whether deemed living or not, and
  - 3.2. the method of transmission, whether direct or indirect, includes but is not limited to, airborne transmission, bodily fluid transmission, transmission from or to any surface or object, solid, liquid or gas or between organisms, and
  - 3.3. the disease, substance or agent can cause or threaten bodily injury, illness, emotional distress, damage to human health, human welfare or property damage.

### 25. Total Asbestos Exclusion:

The Insurer shall not indemnify the Insured in respect of liability directly or indirectly arising out of, resulting from, in consequence of, or in any way involving asbestos, or any materials containing asbestos, in whatever form or quantity.



#### 26. Cyber and Data Total Exclusion:

- Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary within this Policy or any endorsement thereto this Policy does not apply to any loss, damage, liability, claim, fines, penalties, cost or expense of whatsoever nature directly or indirectly caused by, contributed to by, resulting from, arising out of or in connection with any:
  - 1.1 **Cyber Act** or **Cyber Incident** including, but not limited to, any action taken in controlling, preventing, suppressing or remediating any **Cyber Act** or **Cyber Incident**; or
  - 1.2 loss of use, reduction in functionality, repair, replacement, restoration, reproduction, loss or theft of any **Data**, including any amount pertaining to the value of such **Data**; regardless of any other cause or event contributing concurrently or in any other sequence thereto.
- 2. In the event any portion of this endorsement is found to be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder shall remain in full force and effect
- 3. This endorsement supersedes any other wording in the Policy or any endorsement thereto having a bearing on a **Cyber Act, Cyber Incident** or **Data**, and, if in conflict with such wording, replaces it.
- If the Underwriters allege that by reason of this endorsement that loss sustained by the Insured is not covered by this Policy, the burden of proving the contrary shall be upon the Insured.

#### **Definitions**

- 5. Computer System means any computer, hardware, software, communications system, electronic device (including, but not limited to, smart phone, laptop, tablet, wearable device), server, cloud or microcontroller including any similar system or any configuration of the aforementioned and including any associated input, output, data storage device, networking equipment or back up facility, owned or operated by the Insured or any other party.
- 6. **Cyber Act** means an unauthorised, malicious or criminal act or series of related unauthorised, malicious or criminal acts, regardless of time and place, or the threat or hoax thereof involving access to, processing of, use of or operation of any **Computer System.**
- 7. Cyber Incident means:
  - 7.1 any error or omission or series of related errors or omissions involving access to, processing of, use of or operation of any **Computer System**; or
  - 7.2 any partial or total unavailability or failure or series of related partial or total unavailability or failures to access, process, use or operate any **Computer System**.
- 8. **Data** means information, facts, concepts, code or any other information of any kind that is recorded or transmitted in a form to be used, accessed, processed, transmitted or stored by a **Computer System**.

#### 27. Pathogenic Organisms Exclusion

This policy will not provide indemnity:

a) for loss of destruction of or damage to any property whatsoever or any loss or expense whatsoever resulting or arising there from or any consequential loss.

Or

b) against any legal liability of whatsoever nature directly or indirectly caused by or contributed to by or arising from any Pathogenic Organism Definition relating to the above Exclusion

For the purposes of this Exclusion pathogenic organism shall include but not be limited to the following: Mould or Fungi or its spores, bacteria, yeasts, mildew, algae, mycotoxins or any other metabolic products enzymes or protein secreted by the above whether toxic or otherwise.

It is understood and agreed that Insurers shall not be under any duty to defend the insured in any proceedings in connection with any Pathogenic Organism claims or incidents.

This exclusion shall apply irrespective of when the claim arose or was made and irrespective of when the exposure to any Pathogenic Organism occurred.

#### 28. Abuse Exclusion

It is understood and agreed that the insurance provided by this policy does not apply to Bodily Injury, Property Damage or Personal Injury sustained by any person arising out of or resulting from:

- $1. \ \ \text{actual or threatened "abuse" by, at the direction of, or with knowledge of, the Insured;}$
- 2. the failure to act to prevent any actual or threatened "abuse" described in (1) above, after the time that the "supervisory employee" knew or ought reasonably to have known of such actual or threatened "abuse".

It is further understood and agreed that definitions will be as follows:

"Abuse" means sexual, physical, psychological or emotional abuse, molestation or harassment, including corporal punishment.

"Supervisory employee" means an officer or director of an Insured or any other employee of an Insured who has the authority to employ or terminate the employment of other employees of an Insured.

All other Terms and Conditions of this Policy remain unchanged

#### 29. Biological or Chemical Materials Exclusion:

This Policy does not cover legal liability arising from, relating to or contributed to by the actual or threatened malicious use of pathogenic or poisonous biological or chemical materials.

#### 30. Punitive and Exemplary Damages Exclusion:

This Policy does not cover legal liability for the payment of, fines, penalties, liquidated damages, punitive, aggravated or exemplary damages.



# 31. Hazardous Products Exclusion

We do not cover legal liability arising from:

- A. **Products** to be used in connection with or incorporated into or on any aircraft, drones and other aerial devices, airport, aerodrome, helipad or ground based aircraft control equipment;
- B. Products to be used in medical equipment or devices for internal, invasive and/or critical use in or on the human body;
- C. manufacture or supply of pharmaceutical and cosmetic Products other than retail sales;



# GENERAL CONDITIONS

#### 1. Observance of Terms and Right of Recovery

Observance of the terms of this Certificate relating to anything to be done or compiled with/by the Insured is a condition precedent to any liability of the Underwriters except insofar as is necessary to comply with the requirements of any legislation enacted in the Commonwealth of Australia relating to the compulsory insurance of legal liability to employees. The Insured shall repay to the Underwriters all sums paid which the Underwriters would not have been liable to pay but for the provisions of such legislation.

#### Excess

No indemnity is provided until the applicable Excess for any claim has been paid to and received by the Coverholder hereon.

#### 3. Reasonable Precautions

The Insured shall as a condition precedent to liability:

- A. take all reasonable care to prevent any circumstances or to cease any activity which may give rise to liability under this Certificate and to maintain the premises, plant and everything used in the business in a sound condition and to act in accordance with all statutory obligations and regulations:
- B. as soon as possible after discovery, cause any defect or danger to be made good or remedied and in the meantime shall cause such additional precautions to be taken as the circumstances may require.

#### 4. Claims Procedures and Control

- i. The Insured shall give to High Street Underwriting Agency of 1/3 Hinkler Court, Brendale Qld Australia, immediate written notice to claims@hsua.com.au with full particulars of:
  - a. any occurrence which may give rise to a claim for indemnity under this insurance.
  - ${\it b.}\ {\it i.}\ {\it any}$  Employee Bodily Injury related absence of more than three working days duration or
    - ii. any disease contracted by any Employee but only providing such Bodily Injury or disease has arisen or is alleged to have arisen out of and in the course of employment with the Insured.
  - c. any impending prosecution, coroner's inquest or fatal accident enquiry in connection with any occurrence which may give rise to a claim for indemnity under this insurance.
- ii. Every letter, claim, writ, summons or process in connection with any occurrence which may form the subject of indemnity hereunder shall be notified or forwarded to High Street immediately upon receipt.
- iii. The Insured shall neither admit liability for nor agree to settle or repudiate any claim without the written consent of Underwriters.

  Underwriters shall be entitled to conduct the defence of any claim in the name of the Insured and to prosecute in the Insured's name for Underwriters' benefit any claim for indemnity against any third party and shall have full discretion in the conduct of any negotiations and proceedings and the settlement of any claim.
- iv. The Insured shall give to Underwriters all such information and assistance as they may reasonably require.
- v. The Insured shall at all times, in addition to their obligations set out above, afford such information to and co-operation with Underwriters or their appointed agents to allow Underwriters to be able to comply with such relevant Practice Directions and Pre-Action Protocols as may be issued and approved from time to time by the Head of Civil Justice.
- vi. Underwriters may at any time pay to the Insured the Limit of Indemnity (after deducting any sums already paid) or any less amount for which any claim or claims can be settled and thereafter Underwriters shall have no further liability under this insurance in connection with such claim or claims except for Defence Costs incurred prior to the date of payment.
- vii. For the purpose of Condition 5, "Underwriters" also means any loss adjuster nominated by them and acting on their behalf.

# 5. Discharge of Liability

In respect of any claim/claims against the Insured to which a Limit of Indemnity applies the Underwriters may at any time pay the amount of such Limit after deduction of any sums already paid or incurred or any less amount for which at the absolute discretion of the Underwriters such claim/claims can be settled. The Underwriters will then relinquish control of the said claim/claims and be under no further liability in respect thereof except for Legal Costs for which the Underwriters may be responsible prior to the date of such payment unless the Limit of Liability is inclusive of Legal Costs.

### 6. Alteration of Risk

If at any time:

- A. any change is made in the description of the Business;
- B. anything shall occur materially varying the information supplied to the Underwriters at the time this insurance was effected;

the Insured shall give written notice to the Underwriters as soon as reasonably practical and in any event no later than 14 days from the Insured's knowledge of A and/or B above.

The Underwriters reserve the right to amend the terms of this Certificate at the time of such notification.

#### 7. Frau

If the Insured shall make any claim knowing the same to be false or fraudulent the claim will be denied and the policy cancelled prospectively with 3 business days notice.

# 8. Number of Employees

The premium is based on the total number of employees stated in the Schedule and adjustable at the end of each period of insurance.

### 9. Other Insurances

If at the time of any claim covered by this Certificate there is or but for the existence of this Certificate would be any other insurance covering the same legal liability the indemnity afforded by this Certificate will not apply except in respect of any amount beyond that which would have been payable under such insurance had this Certificate not been effected and subject always to the Limit of Liability.



#### 10. Law

This Certificate shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of Australia unless otherwise agreed by the Underwriters. In the event of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Certificate both the Insured and the Underwriters agree to submit to the jurisdiction of any court of competent jurisdiction within the Commonwealth of Australia and to comply with all requirements necessary to give such Court jurisdiction. All matters arising hereunder shall be determined in accordance with the law and practices of such Court.

# 11. Cancellation by Underwriters

The Underwriter's may cancel this Certificate pursuant to the provisions of s.60 Insurance Contracts Act and in such event the Insured may be entitled to a refund of a proportionate part of the premium corresponding to the unexpired Period of Insurance stated in the Schedule

# 12. Several Liability Clause LMA5096

The liability of an insurer under this contract is several and not joint with other insurers party to this contract. An insurer is liable only for the proportion of liability it has underwritten. An insurer is not jointly liable for the proportion of liability underwritten by any other insurer. Nor is an insurer otherwise responsible for any liability of any other insurer that may underwrite this contract.

The proportion of liability under this contract underwritten by an insurer (or, in the case of a Lloyd's syndicate, the total of the proportions underwritten by all the members of the syndicate taken together) is shown in this contract.

In the case of a Lloyd's syndicate, each member of the syndicate (rather than the syndicate itself) is an insurer. Each member has underwritten a proportion of the total shown for the syndicate (that total itself being the total of the proportions underwritten by all the members of the syndicate taken together). The liability of each member of the syndicate is several and not joint with other members. A member is liable only for that member's proportion. A member is not jointly liable for any other member's proportion. Nor is any member otherwise responsible for any liability of any other insurer that may underwrite this contract. The business address of each member is Lloyd's, One Lime Street, London EC3M 7HA. Although reference is made at various points in this clause to "this contract" in the singular, where the circumstances so require this should be read as a reference to contracts in the plural.

# **FURTHER INFORMATION**

#### **Privacy Act**

Lloyd's and its agents are bound by the obligations of the Privacy Act 1988 as amended by the Privacy Amendment (Private Sector) Act 2000 (the Act) and will be covered by the General Insurance Information Privacy Code (the Code). These set basic standards relating to the collection, use, disclosure and handling of personal information.

"Personal information" is essentially information or an opinion about a living individual whose identity is apparent or can reasonably be ascertained from the information or opinion.

Information will be obtained from individuals directly where possible. Sometimes it may be collected indirectly (e.g from your representatives). Only information necessary for the arrangement and administration of Lloyd's business by Lloyd's, its agents and their representatives will be collected. This includes information necessary to accept the risk, to assess a claim, to determine competitive and appropriate premiums, etc.

Lloyd's and its agents disclose personal information to third parties who they believe are necessary to assist them in doing the above. These parties will only use the personal information for the purposes we provided it to them for (or if required by law).

When you give Lloyd's and its agents personal information about other individuals, we rely on you to have made or make them aware that you will or may provide their personal information to us, the types of third parties we may provide it to, the relevant purposes we and the third parties we disclose it to will use it for, and how they can access it. If it is sensitive information we rely on you to have obtained their consent on these matters. If you have not done or will not do either of these things, you must tell us before you provide the relevant information.

You are entitled to access your information if you wish and request correction if required. You may also opt out of receiving materials sent by Lloyd 's by contacting High Street Underwriting Agency Pty Limited on 1800 096 829.



# **ENDORSEMENTS**

#### **Worker to Worker Extension**

Exclusion 1 shall not apply to:

- 1. Claims for recoveries of any payment made by any compulsory workers or accident compensation insurer under the provisions of any compulsory workers or accident compensation legislation or policy, but only where the claim is being made against an Insured who is:
  - a. not the direct employer of the worker in respect of whom the recovery is being sought;
  - b. Not the deemed employer of the worker in respect of whom the recovery is being sought
- 2. Claims made by an injured worker (as defined by applicable workers or accident compensation legislation) against any Insured other than the workers' direct employer or deemed employer.

However, nothing in this clause shall cause the insurer to be liable where the Insured is entitled to indemnity under any policy pursuant to any Workers Compensation legislation.

The excess in respect of claims brought under this Extension shall be as stated in the Schedule as applicable to this Extension.

# GENERAL INSURANCE CODE OF PRACTICE

The Insurance Council of Australia Limited has developed the General Insurance Code of Practice ("the Code"), which is a voluntary self-regulatory code. The Code aims to raise the standards of practice and service in the insurance industry.

Lloyd's has adopted the Code on terms agreed with the Insurance Council of Australia. For further information on the Code please visit <a href="https://www.codeofpractice.com.au">www.codeofpractice.com.au</a>.

The Code Governance Committee (CGC) is an independent body that monitors and enforces insurers' compliance with the Code. For more information on the Code Governance Committee (CGC) go to <a href="https://www.insurancecode.org.au">www.insurancecode.org.au</a>.

# **COMPLAINTS AND DISPUTES**

If you have any concerns or wish to make a complaint in relation to this policy, our services or your insurance claim, please let us know and we will attempt to resolve your concerns in accordance with our Internal Dispute Resolution procedure. Please contact High Street Underwriting Agency in the first instance:

The Compliance Manager

**High Street Underwriting Agency** 

Po Box 7174 Brendale

Queensland 4500

Phone: 1800 096 829
Email: info@hsua.com.au

We will acknowledge receipt of your complaint and do our utmost to resolve the complaint to your satisfaction within 10 business days.

If we cannot resolve your complaint to your satisfaction, we will escalate your matter to Lloyd's Australia who will determine whether it will be reviewed by their office or the Lloyd's UK Complaints team. Lloyd's contact details are:

### Lloyd's Australia Limited

Email: idraustralia@lloyds.com Telephone: (02) 8298 0783

Post: Suite 1603 Level 16, 1 Macquarie Place, Sydney NSW 2000

A final decision will be provided to you within 30 calendar days of the date on which you first made the complaint unless certain exceptions apply.

You may refer your complaint to the Australian Financial Complaints Authority (AFCA), if your complaint is not resolved to your satisfaction within 30 calendar days of the date on which you first made the complaint or at any time. AFCA can be contacted as follows:

Telephone: 1800 931 678 Email: info@afca.org.au

Post: GPO Box 3 Melbourne VIC 3001

Website: www.afca.org.au

Your complaint must be referred to AFCA within 2 years of the final decision, unless AFCA considers special circumstances apply. If your complaint is not eligible for consideration by AFCA, you may be referred to the Financial Ombudsman Service (UK) or you can seek independent legal advice. You can also access any other external dispute resolution or other options that may be available to you.

The Underwriters accepting this Insurance agree that:

(i) if a dispute arises under this Insurance, this Insurance will be subject to Australian law and practice and the Underwriters will submit to the jurisdiction of any competent Court in the Commonwealth of Australia;



(ii) any summons notice or process to be served upon the Underwriters may be served upon:

# Lloyd's Underwriters' General Representative in Australia

Suite 1603

Level 16

1 Macquarie Place

Sydney NSW 2000

who has authority to accept service on the Underwriters' behalf;

(iii) if a suit is instituted against any of the Underwriters, all Underwriters participating in this Insurance will abide by the final decision of such Court or any competent Appellate Court.

In the event of a claim arising under this Insurance immediate notice should be given to:

# **Proclaim Management Solutions Pty.Ltd**

271 Collins Street

Melbourne, VIC 3000

Email: claims@hsua.com.au





